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I. INTRODUCTION

On Noveinber 19, 2009, the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio

certified two questions of state law pursuant to Supreme Court Rule XVIII:

1. Does R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01 violate the
Retroactivity Clause of Article 11, Section 28 of the Ohio Constitution?

2. Does R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01 violate the Contract
Clause of Article II, Section 28 of the Ohio Coarrstitution?

The underlying case arose when Petitioner John Doe ("Doe") was terininated firom his

employinent with Respondent Cincinnati Public Schools ("CPS") based on the results of a

criminal records background check required by R.C. 3319.391 and the version of Ohio Adm.

Code 3301-20-01 in effect during the 2008-09 school year. (See Amended Complaint, attached

hereto as Exhibit A) Based on Doe's conviction for a drug trafficking offense in 1976, Doe was

disqualified from employment with CPS or any Ohio public school.

Respondents CPS and CPS Superintendent Mary Ronan (collectively, "CPS Defendants")

respectfully submit that the Courl should decline to answer the certified questions. Following

Doe's termination, and subsequent to Doe's moving to certify questions to the Supreme Court,

the Ohio Department of Education ("ODE") amended the regulation that resulted in his

termination. Under the current version of the regulations, Doe's drug traPlicking conviction

would not automatically bar his employment with CPS. The CPS Defendants respectfully

submit that the Court should not expend valuable judicial resources examining the

constitutionality of a regulation that is no longer in effect.

If the Court answers the certified questions, the Court should answer both questions in

the negative. R.C. 3319.391 and the former version of Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01 do not

violate the Ohio Constitution's prohibition against retroactive laws and did not uneonstitutionally

impair Doe's employment contract with CPS. Even if the laws were unconstitutional, howevei-,
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there is no reason that Respondents CPS or Superintendent Ronan should be liable for simply

following the directives of the Ohio General Assembly and ODE. The Court should decline to

answer the certified questions, or answer the questions in the negative.

II. BACKGROUND

A. R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01

In 2007, the Oliio General Assembly enacted R.C. 3319.391 requiring all non-licensed

employees of Ohio school districts to undergo a criminal records background check. See Sub.

H.B. 190 (127th G.A.). Since 1993, teachers and otlier licensed employces of Ohio public

schools have been required to undergo criminal records background checks in accordance with

procedures specified in R.C. 3319.39. The statute provides a list of criminal offenses which are

bars to employment in Ohio public scliools. R.C. 3319.39(B)(l)(a). Beginning on September 5,

2008, non-licensed personnel of public schools were subjeet to the same requirements. R.C.

3319.391(C) (any non-licensed employee found to have been convicted of an enumerated

offense "shall be released from employment").

Pur-suant to R.C. 3319.39(E), ODE adopted rules to implement the critninal records

checks, "including rules specifying eircumstanees under which [a public school] may hire a

person who has been convicted of [an enumerated] offense but who meets standards in regtn-d to

rehabilitation set by the de,parthnent." When the background check requirernents were expanded

to cover non-licensed personnel in 2008, ODE already had established rehabilitation standards

for teachers and licensed personnel. Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01 (2005) (attached hereto as

Exhibit B). Under the version of the licensed personnel regulations, in place sinec 2005, eei-tain

crimes involving violent offenses, drug abuse offenses, theft offenses, and sexually-oriented

offenses were automatic bars to eniployment, and an individual could not sliow that he was
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rehabilitated regardless of how long ago the offense had been committed. Ohio Adin. Code

3301-20-01(E)(1)(c) (2005) (Exhibit B).

B. John Doe's Ernployment With Cincinnati Public Schools

Petitioner John Doe was convicted of a drug traflicking offense under R.C. 2925.03 in

1976, and served over three years in an Ohio correctional facility. (Arnend. Compl. ¶¶ 19-20,

Exhibit A) IIe was employed by CPS in 1997. (Id. at ¶ 7) In September 2008, pursuant to R.C.

3319.391, Doe underwent a criminal records background check. tJnder the ODE regulations in

effect at that time, CPS was not allowed to consider any rehabilitation standards with respect to

Doe's drug trafficking eonviction, and Doe was notified that his employment would be

terminated. (Id. at ¶ 12) Although it was under no obligation to do so, CPS allowed Doe first to

use all of the sick leave that he had aecuniulated. (Ld.) When his sick leave expired, CPS

released Doe from liis einployment as it was required to do under R.C. 3319.391(C).

C. Procedural Background

Doe filed this lawsuit against the CPS Defendants and ODE in Ohio state court in April

2009. Doe v. CPS, et aZ., Hamilton County Common Pleas Case No. A0903419. Defendants

removed the case to federal court on Apri17, 2009. Doe. v. CPS, et al., S.D. Ohio Case No.

1:09-CV-243, Doe. l.

Plaintiff's eomplaint alleges a cause of action for breach of contract and claims under the

Ohio and U.S. Constitutions. He claims that R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01

(2005) violated his eonstithrtional rights under the impairmcnt of contracts clauses of the Ohio

and U.S. Constitutions (Amend. Compl. ¶¶ 43-46), the ex post facto clause of the U.S.

Constitution (id, at ¶¶ 53-56), the reti-oactive laws clause of the Ohio Constitution (id. at ¶¶ 64-

67), the due process clause of the U.S. Constitution (id. at ¶¶ 73-78), and the equal protection

clause of the U.S. Constitution (id. at ¶¶ 85-89).
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Doe filed a motion for a temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction to

prevent CPS from terminating his employment, which the federal district court denied. S.D.

Ohio Case No. 1:09-CV-243, Docs. 3, 10. Tn May 2009, ODE filed a motion to dismiss Doe's

complaint for faihn-e to state a claim upon which relief could be granted arguing that the

challenged statute and regulation were not unconstitutionat under any of Doe's thcories. Id.,

Doe, 17. CPS and Superintendent Ronan filed a motion for judgment on the pleadings,

incorporating by reference ODE's arguinents as to the constitutionality oI'the challenged statute

and regulations. Id., Doe. 19. The CPS Defendants fiirther argried that Doe did not state a claim

against them for siinply following the directives of the General Assembly and Department of

Education. Id.

Doe never responded to the CPS Defendants' motion for judgment on the pleadings, but

instead filed a motion to certify Ohio constitufional questions to this Court. Id., Doc. 23. The

CPS Defendants filed a memorandum in opposition to Doe's motion to certify, arguing that

certification was inappropriate ander Supreme Court Itule XVIII. Id., Doe. 26. Among other

reasons, the CPS Defendants pointed out that ODE was considering ehanges to Ohio Adm. Code

3301-20-01 and that it would be premature for the district court to certify questions to the

Supreme Court regarding a regulation which could soon be amended. Id.

Neverthcless, on November 16, 2009, the district court granted Doe's motion to certify

questions to this Court. Id., Doe. 28. The district court denied ODE's motion to dismiss and the

CPS Defendants' motion for judgment on the pleadings, with instructions to refile after the

Supreme Court ruled on the certified questions.

D. ODE Adopts Changes To Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01

As expected, in August 2009, ODE issued revised regulations to implement the eriminal

records background check requirement for non-licensed employees of public schools. Under the

4
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new final rules effective on August 27, 2009, Ohio Adin. Code 3301-20-01 now only applies to

teachers and other licensed employees.

ODE adopted a new rule, Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-03 (2009) (attached as Exhibit C),

regarding eriminal background checks for non-licensed employees. While some crimes are still

considered by ODE to be "non-rehabilitative," the revised regulations provide time limits for

most crimes wliicll allow the rehabilitation standards to be considered.' Pursuant to the amended

regulations, Doe's 1976 conviction is not an automatic bar to his employnleit in a non-licensed

position in an Ohio public school. Provided he meets the rehabilitation standards set forth in

Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-03(D) (2009), he is eligible again for employment at CPS.

III. TIIE COUR'T SHOULD DECLINE TO ANSWER THE CERTIFIED OUESTIONS

The CPS Defendants respectfully submit that the Court should decline to answer the

certified questions. ODE has amended the regulation that forms the basis of the certified

questions, and it would be a waste of judicial resorirces for the Court to consider the

constitutionality of a regulation which is no longer in effect. Moreover, answering the certified

questions is not warranted under Seetion 1 of Suprene Court Rule XVIII because answeriitg the

question in Doe's favor would not be detezninative of the district court proceeding and the

statute and regulation are constitutional under well-established Ohio precedent.

1 Under Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-03(A)(6), sexually oriented offenses are considered non-
rehabilitative. Murder and manslaughter are considered non-rehabilitative, but the rehabilitative
standards may be considered for "other violencc related offenses" occurring more than twenty
years prior to the ciiminal records background check. Id. The rehabilitative standards may be

considered for all "dnig offenses" occurring more than ten years prior to the ciilninal records

check. Id. The standards may be considered for "theft offenses" occun-ing more tltan ten years

from the criminal records check. Id. The standards may be considered tbr all otlier violations
identified in R.C. 3319.39 occurring nlore than tive years before the criniinal records check. Id.
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A. The Supreme Court Should Not Deterinine The Constitutionality Of A

Regulation Which Has Been Amended And No Longer Bars Doe From

Employment With CPS.

This Court shoLild decline to answer the certified questions because the ODE regulation

which had precluded CPS fi-om considering the rehabilitation standards with respect to Doe's

1976 conviction for drug trafficking is no longer in effect. At the time Doe filed his motion to

certify questions in July 2009, the former version of the ODE regulation was still in effect, and

Doe was at that time balred from being employed in a non-licensed position with an Ohio public

school district. Now that the regulations have been revised, it would be a waste of judicial

resources for the Court to consider the certified questions.

Although Doe understands that lie is cuixently eligible to be elnployed by CPS, he has

nevertheless continued to prosecute this lawsuit to recover the backpay he elaims that he would

be entitled to if his employrnent had never been terminated in accordance with the law. CPS

notified Doe of the results of the criminal records check in November 2008, and inforn-ied him

that his eniployment would be terminated. (Amend. Compl. ¶ 12) At that time, Doe was taking

sick leave, and CPS allowed Doe to continue to collect his full salary as sick pay through at least

April 2009, (Id.) The only remaining question in this case is whether Doe is entitled to be

reinstated to his former position, have his sick leave restored, and be paid backpay for the weeks

during the remainder of the 2008-09 school year during which CPS was barTed from employing

hi1n. The CPS Defendants respectfully submit that the district court may answer these questions

without thc Supreme Court expending its own valuable judicial resources.

6
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B. Even If The Supreme Court Answers The Certified Questions In Doe's
Favor, The Result Would Not Be Determinative Of The District Court
Proceeding.

The CPS Defendants have argued in their motion for judgmcnt on the pleadings that even

if the fonner regulation was unconstitutional, they cannot be held liable for simply following the

directives of the Ohio General Assembly and ODE. Even if the Court finds that the statute and

regrilafion were unconstitutional, there is no basis for holding the CPS Defendauts liable for

simply follownrg the law. Indeed, this Court has held that public employees cannot sue their

employer for violations of the Ohio Constitution:

[P]ublic employees do not have a private cause of civil aetion against their
employer to redress alleged violations by their employer of policies
embodicd in the Ohio Constitution when it is detennined that there are
other reasonably satisfactory remedics provided by statutory enactment and
administrative process.

Provens v. Stark County Bd. of Mental Retardcation & Develop, Disabilities (1992), 64 Ohio

St.3d 252, 261, 1992-Ohio-35, 594 N.E.2d 959. Based on the panoply of administrative and

collective bargaining rights enjoyed by the public employee in Provens (the same rights

available to Doe in this case), the Court concludcd that "tliere was no private constitutional

remedy ... in that the Ohio Constitution itself does not provide for a civil daniage remedy." Id.

at 261. Thus, even if the Court answered the certified questions and found that the for7ner

version of the regulation was unconstitutional, the CPS Defendants would not be liable.

7
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C. The Statute And Regulation Are Constitutional Under The Retroactive Laws
And Impairments To Contracts Clauses Of The Ohio Constitution.

1. R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01 (2005) do not violate
the retroactive laws clause of the Ohio Constitution.

The first certified question is whetller R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01

(2005) violate Ohio Const. Art. II, sec. 28, which provides: "The general assembly shall have no

power to pass retroactive laws."

To show that the retroactive laws clause was violated, Doe must show that the statute

impairs his "vested substantive rights," and is not nierely remodial State v. Ferguson (2008), 120

Ohio St.3d 7, 12, 2008-Ohio-4824, 896 N.E.2d 110 (holding that changes to Ohio's sexual

offender registration and notification law were not punitive and were not unconstitutionally

retroactive). A "statutory scheme that serves a regulatory purpose is not punishment even though

it inay bear harshly upon one affected. Consequences as drastic as deportation, deprivation of

one's livelihood, and termination of financial support have not been considered su9iicient to

transform an avowedly regulatory measure into a punitive one." Id. (emphasis added) (citing

Doe v. Pataki (C.A.2 1997), 120 F.3d 1263, 1279).

In State ex rel. Matz v. Brown (1998), 37 Ohio St.3d 279, 282, 525 N.E.2d 805, this Court

explained the "important public policy reason" for holding that non-punitive laws are not

unconstitutionally retroactive:

[I]f Relator's theory were to prevail, no person convicted of
abusing children could be prevented fi-om school employinent by a
later law excluding such persons from that employment.

Id. at 282 (holding that statute that restricted persons convicted of a past felony froni matdng a

claim on a crime victiln fiind was not unconstitutionally retroactive).

llere, the statute and regulation were clearly designed to protect Ohio public school

children, and the certified question should be answered in the negative. Bccause R.C. 3319.391

8
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and the ODE regulation were regulatory not punitive, the Court should find that they do not

violate the retroactive laws clause of the Ohio Constitution.

2. R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-20-01 (2005) do not violate
the impairment of contracts clause in the Ohio Constitution.

The second certifled question asks whether R.C. 3319.391 and Ohio Adm. Code 3301-

20-01 (2005) violate the impairment of contract clanse of the Ohio Constitution which provides

that "[tlhe general asscmbly shall have no power to pass ... laws impairing the obligation of

contracts." Section 28, Article 11, Ohio Constitution.

Doe claims that the challenged statute and regulation unconstitutionally impair his

employnient contract with CPS. 2 But CPS's contract with Doe was expressly conditioned on

Doe possessing appropriate certification from the state to work in a public school:

Commencement of the term of this agreement subject to
confirmation of appropriate state certification.

(Exhibit D) Doe's employment contract with CPS was not impaired by the criminal background

check require nent imposed by the General Assembly and ODE.

Even if the certi fication condition had not been expressly written into Doe's contract,

however, the cnactment of R.C. 3319.391 did not violate Section 28, Article 11 of the Ohio

Constitution. CPS and Doe could not enter into a contract that would abrogate the ability of the

General Assembly or ODE to change the qualifications for personnel of Ohio public schools.

See, e.g., State v. Netherland (Ohio App. 4th Dist.), 2008-Ohio-7007, ¶ 40, 2008 WL 5451339

(holding that statutory revisions to Oliio sex offender classification statute did not

unconstitutionally impair convictee's plea agreemeut with county prosecutor). See also Lirraa v.

State, 122 Ohio St.3d 155, 157, 2009-Ohio-2597, 909 N.E.2d 616 (holding that General

2 Plaintiff's multiple year admiuistrative contract witb CPS was attached as an exhibit to his state
court complaint and is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

9
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Assembly's statutory prohibition of residency requirements as a condition of employinent did not

unconstitutionally impair municipalities' contractual agreements with public employees).

"It is well settled that the provisions of the state and 1'ederal Constitutions inhibiting laws

impairing the obligation of contract, cannot affect the police power." Benjamin v. City of

Columbus (1957), 167 Ohio St. 103, 116, 146 N.E.2d 854. The state's authority to legislate

pursuant to its police power "must be treated as an implied condition of any contract." City of

Akron v. Public Utilities Commission ( 1948), 149 Ohio St. 347, 355-356, 78 N.E.2d 890. It is

"well established .. . that when the subject of the contract is one which affects the safety and

welfare of the public, such contracts are held to be within the supervising power and control of'

the legislature when exercised to protect the public safety, health and morals." Id.

The decision by the General Asseinbly and ODE to prohibit persons convicted of drug

trafficking from working in public schools was a valid exercise of the state's police powcr to

protect Ohio public school children. The question of whether Doe's employrnent contract with

CPS was wiconstitutionally impaired should be answei-ed in the negative.

10
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IV. CONCLUSION

For each and all of the foregoing reasons, Respondents Cincinnati Public Schools and

Mary Ronan respectfiilly submit that the Court should decline to answer the certified questions,

or in the alternative, answer the certified questions should be answered in the negative.

StcylSan
Daniel J. fIoy'ng (00796
Taft Stet^injits & Hollister LLP
425 Walriut Street, Suite 1800
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
(513) 381-2838
Fax: (513) 38t-0205
step aniak@taftl aw. com
hoying@taftlaw.coin

Counsel for Respondents
Cincinnati Public Schools and Mary Ronan

11
11560599.1



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a copy of the foregoing was served via regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid

upon the following this 9th day of December 2009:

Christopher R. McDowell
Kimberly Beck
Carly Chu
Sarali M. Sparks
Dinsmore & Shohl LLP
1900 Cheined Center
255 East Fifth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Counsel for Petitioner John Doe

12

Amy Nash Golian
Todd R. Marti
Office of the Oliio Attorney General
30 East Broad Street, 16th Floor
Coiumbus,Oliio 43215

Counsel for Respondent
Ohio Department of Education

11560599.1



Case 1:09-cv-00243-MRB Document 12 Filed 04/24/09 Page 1 of 14

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

WESTERN DIVISION
Electronically Filed

JOHN DOE Case No. 1:09-CV-243

Plaintiff, Judge Michael R. Barrett

vs.
AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR BREACH

CINCINNATI PUBLIC SCHOOLS OF CONTRACT, DECLARATORY
BOARD OF EDUCATION, et al., : JUDGMENT, RELIEF UNDER 42 U.S.C. §

1983, PERMANENT INJUNCTION, AND A
Defendants. : WRIT OF MANDAMUS

For his Amended Complaint against Defendants the Cincinnati Public Schools Board of

Education and Mary'Ronan, Interim Superintendent (hereinafter collectively referred to as

"Defendants"), Plaintiff John Doe alleges as follows:

PARTIES

1. Plaintiff John Doe ("Plaintiff') is an individual resident of Hamilton County,

Ohio.

2. Defendant Cincinnati Public Schools ("CPS") is the Ohio public school district

providing public education to school children in the City of Cirrcinnati, with its principal office

located at 2651 Bumet Avenue, Cincimiati, Hamilton County, Ohio 45219.

3. Defendant Interim Superintendent, Mary Ronan ("Ronan") is an individual

residing at 540 Fairbanks Avenue, Cincinnati, F3amilton County, Ohio 45205-2248.

4. Defendant Ohio Department of Education is an Ohio governmental agency.
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JURISDICTION

5. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1343,

and 1367. This case was removed pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441.

6. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

7. Plaintiff has been employed by CPS for over I 1 years, first as a "Safe & Drug

Free School Specialist" beginning in 1997, then as a "Due Process Hearing Specialist" beginning

in 2002 through the present.

8. Plaintiff primarily supports himself with his wages from his employment at CPS.

9. Since 2002, Plaintiff has worked in an administrative capacity only. Iie does not

have direct contact with students except at administrative hearings when a student's guardian is

present.

10. Plaintiff has received either an "acceptable" or "accomplished" job evaluation

every year since he became employed at CPS.

11. On July 14, 2008, Plaintiff and Defendants, through their agent, Jonathon Boyd

entered into a written contract (hereafter "the Contract") whereby Plaintiff would be employed as

a Hearing Officer for the 2008-2009 school year, at a salary of $77,389.52, with an adjustment,

considering he is to work 210 days.

12. Plaintiff was in full compliance with the terms of the Contract, when, on

November 24, 2008, Defendarits, through their agent, Carol Landwehr, contacted Plaintiff by

phone to inform him that they intended to terminate his employinent. Defendants agreed to

employ Plaintiff mitil he used all, of the "sick leave" he had accumulated. His accumulated sick

leave will become exhausted in April of 2009.

2
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13. On January 26, 2009, Defendants, through their agent, Carol Landwelir, contacted

Plaintiff by letter, stating that Doe was barred from continued employtnent at CPS pursuant to

Ohio Rev. Code § 3319.39 and 127th Ohio General Assembly House Bill 190 ("II.B. 190").

14. H.B. 190 and 127th Ohio General Assembly Substitute House Bill 428

("Sub.H.B. 428"), effective respectively in November of 2007 and September of 2008, changed

existing law and added a statutory provision, Ohio Rev. Code. § 3319.391. This provision

rcquires, inter alia, a criminal records check of all current employees of a school district. Any

etnrent employee who has a conviction of certain enumerated offenses must be released from

employment without regard to the time that has passed since the conviction or the life that the

employee has led following the conviction.

15. Ohio Rev. Code. § 3319.39 grants the Defendant Ohio Department of Education

the power to adopt administrative rules specifying the circumstances under which a person may

be hired or retained if the person meets "standards in regard to rehabilitation set by the

departinent."

16. Defendant Ohio Department of Education adopted such a rale, Ohio Adinin. Code

§ 3301-20-01, which establishes a set of criteria that are used to determine whether a "reasonable

person would conclude that the [employee's continued employment] ... will not jeopardize the

health, safety, or welfare of the persons served by the district."

17. Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01 provides that the following are "[e]vidence that

the [employee's] hiring or licensure will not jeopardize the health, safety or welfare of the

pcrsons served by the district ...

i. The nature and seriousness of the crime;

ii. The extent of the applicant's past criminal activity;

iii. The age of the applicant when the crime was committed;

3
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iv. The antount of time that has elapsed since the applicant's last

criminal activity;

v. The conduct and work activity of the applicant before and after the

criminal activity;

vi. Whether the applicant has completed the terms of his probation or

deferred adjudication;

vii. Evidence of rehabilitation;

viii. Whether the applicant fully disclosed the crime to the state board,

the department, and the district;

ix. Whether employment or licensure will have a negative impact on

the local education eommunity;

X. Whether employment or ccensnre will have a negative impact on

the state-wide education community; and

xi. Any otlrer factors the state board, district, or superintendent

considers relevant."

18. Individuals convicted of certain offenses, however, may not prove that they have

been rehabilitated under any circumstances. These offenses incltide (a) offenses of violence, (b)

theft offenses; (c) drug abuse offenses; and (d) sexually-oriented offenses.

19. Plaintiff was convicted of Unlawful Sale of Narcotic Drugs on November 11,

1976.

20. Plaintiff served over three years in a correctional facility for his November 1976

conviction, where he became rehabilitated.

21. While incarcerated, Plaintiff began to take classes in furtherance of his goal of

obtaining a Bachelor of Science degree.

22. After his incarceration, Plaintiff continued his education at the University of

Cincinnati and obtained his B.S. in Sociology in December of 1983.
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23. Plaintiff has also become a Licensed Social Worker and Certified Chemical

Dependeney Counselor.

24. Sincc his 1976 conviction, Plaintiff has spent a significant portion of his life

working with young people to avoid drugs and other peer-pressure-related problems.

25. Plaintiff does not have any other criminal convictions.

26. Plaintiff's 1976 criminal conviction was expunged ptn'suant to Ohio Rev. Code §

2953.32 in August of 1997.

27. Plaintiff would qualify for continued einployment under the rehabilitation criteria

found in Ohio Adtnin. Code § 3301-20-01. However, the rule arbitrarily excludes Plaintiff from

showing he has been rehabilitated because his conviction is for a drug abuse offense.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Breach of Contract)

28. Plaintiff reasserts the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 25 as if fully

rewritten herein.

29. Plaintiff and Defendants CPS and Ronan entered into the Contract.

30. According to the terms of the Con.tract, Defendants CPS and Ronan agreed to

employ Plaintiff through the 2008-2009 school year.

31. At all times relevant, Plaintiff was and is ready, willing, and able to perform his

obligations under ttio Contract.

32. Defendants CPS and Ronan repudiated the Contract when they, through their

agent, Carol Landwehr, contacted Plain.tiffby phone to inform him that they intended to

tenninate his employment as soon as he returned from sick leave in Apri12009.

5
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33. Defendants CPS and Ronan repudiated the Contract when they, through their

agent, Carol Landwebr, contacted Plaintiff by letter, stating that Plaintiff was barred from

continued employment at the district pursuant to Ohio Rev. Code. § 3319.39 and H.B. 190.

34. Defendants CPS and Ronan refuse to comply with the terms of the Contract and

have anticipatorily repudiated it.

35. Breach of the Contract will cause Plaintiff irreparable harm as this job is his

primary means of support, and he will be unable to obtain a similar position at any school in

Ohio pursuant to Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391, 3319.39, as aniended by H.B. 190 and Sub.II.B.

428, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01.

36. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to specific perforinance of his employment

Contract.

37. As an alternative pleading, Plaintiff asserts that he will suffer darnages in an

amount to be determined at trial consisting of lost wages, lost contributions to his State Teacher's

Retirement System account, and lost wages for personal, vacation, and sick days.

38. Plaintiff Doe has a clear legal right to continued employment, and Defendants

CPS and Ronan have a corresponding clear legal duty to provide continued employment.

Therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to a writ of rnandamus to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him

to his position as a Due Process Hearing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment

contract.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Ohio Rev. Code § 3319.391 and Ohio Adaeuin. Code § 3301-20-01 Violate the Right to

Contract Under the Ohio and United States Constitutions.)

39. Plaintiff reasserts the allegations contained in paragraphs I through 38 as if fully

rewritten herein.

6
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40. 42 U.S.C. § 1983 provides a private cause of action for the deprivation, under

color of state law, of rights secured to individuals by the Constitution.

41. The Ohio Constitution states, "The General Assembly shall have no power to pass

retroactive laws, or laws impairing the obligation of eontracts .. Section 28, Article II of the

Ohio Constitution.

42. The United States Constitution states, "No State shall ... pass any ... Law

impairing the Obligation of Contracts. ...... Article 1, Section 10, Clause i of the United States

Constitution.

43. Ohio Rev. Code. § 3319.39 and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-011 require

Defendants CPS and Ronan to terminate the employment of Plaintiff despite the Contract

between Plaintiff and Defendants.

44. Defendant Ohio Department of Education promulgated Ohio Admin. Code §

3301-20-01.

45. Ohio Rev. Code. § 3319.391 and Ohio Adniin. Code § 3301-20-01

unconstitutionally impair the Contract between Plaintiff and Defendants under both the United

States and Ohio Constitutions.

46. Ohio Rev. Code, § 3319.391 and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01 should be

declared unconstitutional pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and the

Ohio Declaratory ludgment Act found in Chapter 2721 of the Ohio Revised Code.

47. Violation of Plaintiffs constitutional rights will cause Plaintiff irreparable harm.

48. Defendants should be enjoined from violating Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

49. Plaintiff Doe has a clear legal right to continued employment, and Defendants

CPS and Ronan have a corresponding clear legal duty to provide continued employment.

7
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Therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to a writ of mandamus to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him

to his position as a Due Process Hearing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment

contract.

50. Plaintiff is entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(The Retroactive Application of H.B. 190 and Sub.H.B. 428 Violates the Prohibition on Ex

Post Facto Laws in Article I, Section 10 of the United States Constitution.)

51. Plaintiff reasserts the allegations contained in paragraphs I tlu•ough 50 as if fully

rewritten herein.

52. 42 U.S.C. § 1983 provides a private cause of action for the deprivation, under

color of state law, of rights secured to individuals by the Constitution.

53. Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 of the United States Constitution prohibits ex post

facto laws.

54. The General Assembly expressly or impliedly intended Ohio Rev. Code. §§

3319.391 and 3319.39, as amended by H.B. 190 and Sub.H.B. 428, to have a punitive effect.

55. As an altemative pleading, Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39, as

amended by H.B. 190 and Sub.1-1.B. 428, have a punitive effect.

56. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39 are unconstitutional ex post facto laws

under the United States Constitution and should be declared unconstitutional pursuant to the

Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and the Ohio Declaratory Judgment Act found in

Chapter 2721 of the Ohio Revised Code.

57. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39 violate Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

58. Violation of Plaintiffs constitutional rights will cause Plaintiff irreparable harm.

59. Defendants should be enjoined from violating Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

8
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60. Plaintiff Doe has a clear legal right to continued employment, and Defendants

CPS and Ronan have a corresponding clear legal duty to provide continrted employment.

'fherefore, Plaintiff is entitled to a writ of mandamus to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him

to his position as a Due Process IIearing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment

contract.

61. Plaintiff is entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR Rp;I,IEF
(The Retroactive Application of H.B.190 and Sub.H.B. 428 Violates the Prohibition on

Retroactive Laws in Article II, Section 28 of the Ohio Constitution.)

62. Plaintiff reasserts the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 61 as if fully

rewritten herein.

63. The Ohio Constitution prolubits the enactment of retroactive laws.

64. The General Assembly intended Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39, as

aniended by H.B. 190 and Sub.li.B. 428, to apply retroactively.

65. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39, as ainended by H.B. 190 and

Sub.H.B. 428, impair Plaintiffs substantive rights.

66. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39 are unconstitutional retroactive laws

under the Ohio Constitution and should be declared unconstitutional pursuant to the Declaratory

7udl,nnent Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and the Ohio Declaratory Judgment Act found in Chapter 2721

of the Ohio Revised Code.

67. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391 and 3319.39 violate Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

68. Violation of Plaintiffs constitutional rights will cause Plaintiff irreparable harm.

69. Defendants should be enjoined from violating Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

9
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70. Plaintiff Doe has a clear legal right to continued employment, and Defendants

CPS and Ronan have a corresponding clear legal duty to provide continued employment.

Therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to a writ of mandamus to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him

to his position as a Due Process Hearing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment

contract.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Ohio Rev. Code §§ 3319.39, and 3319.391, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01

Violate the Rigbt to Procedural & Substantive Due Process of Law
Under the United States Constitution.)

71, Plaintiff reasserts the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 througli 70 as if fully

rewiitten herein.

72. 42 U.S.C. § 1983 provides a private cause of action for the deprivation, under

color of state law, of rights secured to individuals by the Constitution.

73. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Section 1 states

that "nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of

law; . . . .

74. Plaintiff has a property interest in his employment by CPS, a public school.

75. T'he operation of Ohio lZev. Code. §§ 3319.391, and 3319.39, as amended by H.B.

190 and Sub.H.B. 428, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01 unconstitutionally deprives

Plaintiff of his property interest without due process of law.

76. Any procedures provided to Plaintiff or that will be provided to Plaintiff are

meaningless and perfunetory because the statute requires his termiriation.

77. 7'he operation of Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391, and 3319.39, as amended by H.B.

190 aud Sub.H.B. 428, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01 also unconstitutionally deprives
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Plaintiff of his right to substantive due process as secured to him by the Fourteenth Amendment

to the United States Constitution.

78. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.39, and 3319.391, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01

should be declared unconstitutional pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201

and the Ohio Declaratory Judgment Act found in Chapter 2721 of the Ohio Revised Code.

79. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.39, and 3319.391, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01

violate Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

80. Violation of Plaintiffs constitutional rights will cause Plaintiff irreparable harm.

81. Defendants should be enjoined from violating Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

82. Plaintiff Doe has a clear legal right to continued employment, and Defendants

CPS and Ronan have a corresponding clear legal duty to provide continued employment.

Therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to a writ of mandamus to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him

to his position as a Due Process Hearing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment

contract.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Ohio Rev. Code §§ 3319.39, and 3319.391, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01 Violate the

Right to Equal Protection of Laws Under the United States Constitution.)

83. Plaintiff reasserls the allegations contained in paragraphs I through 82 as if fully

rewritten herein.

84. 42 U.S.C. § 1983 provides a private cause of action for the deprivation, under

color of state law, of rights secured to individuals by the Constitution.

85. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Section I states

that "No State shall ... deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the

laws."
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86. "The operation of Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.391, and 3319.39, as amendcd by H.B.

190 and Sub.H.B. 428, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01, unconstitutionally denies Plaintiff

equal protection of the laws because Plaintiff is not pennitted to show that he has been

rehabilitated while other individuals with convictions may demonstrate rehabilitation and keep

their jobs.

87. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319.39, and 3319.391, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01

should be declared unconstitutional pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201

and the Ohio Declaratory Judgment Act found in Chapter 2721 of the Ohio Revised Code.

88. Plaintiff is entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

89. Ohio Rev. Code. §§ 3319,39, and 3319.391, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01

violate Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

90. Violation of Plaintiffs constitutional rights will cause Plaintiff irreparable harm.

91. Defendants should be enjoined froin violating Plaintiffs constitutional rights.

92. Plaintiff Doe has a clear legal right to continued employment, and Defendants

CPS and Ronan have a corresponding clear legal duty to provide continued employment.

'1'herefore, Plaintiff is entitled to a writ of mandanius to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him

to his position as a Due Process Heaiing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment

contract.

WI3ERF.FORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants as follows:

a. An injunction instructing Defendants to refrain from terminating the employment

of Plaintiff John Doe;

b. In the alternative to an injunction, his expectation damages under the Contract;
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c. A declaration that Ohio Rev. Code §§ 3919.391, and 3939.39, as amended by

H.B. 190 and Sub.H.B. 428, and Ohio Admin. Code § 3301-20-01 are unconstitutional under the

Ohio and/or United States Constitutions;

d. An injunction instructing Defendants to refrain from violating Plaintiff John Doe's

rights imder the Ohio and United States Constitutions;

C. A writ of mandamus to compel CPS and Ronan to reinstate him to his position as

a Due Process Hearing Specialist and to honor his statutory employment contract.

f. Attorneys' fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988; and

g. Any and all other relief that the Court may deem appropriate.

Respectfully Submitted,

/s/ Christopher R. McDowell
Christopher R. McDowell (0072218)
Kimberly Beck (0080616)
Carly Chu (0083211)
Sarah M. Sparks (0083803)
DINSMORE & SHOHL LLP
1900 Chemed Center
255 East Fifth Street
Cincinnati, OH 45202
(513) 977-8200
(513) 977-8141 (fax)
emedowel@dinslaW.com
kimberly,beck@dinslaw.com
carly.chu@dinslaw.ocm
sarah.sparks@dinslaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, John Doe
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a copy of the foregoing Motion was served this 24th day of April, 2009 via ECF
on the following:

Mark J. Stepaniak
Daniel7. Hoying
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP
425 Walnut Street, Suite 1800
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202-3957
Counsel for Defendants Cincinnati Public Schools and Mary Ronan

Amy Nash Golian
Ohio Attorriey General
30 East Broad Street, 16th Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215
Counsel,Jor Defendant Ohio Department of Education

/s/ Christo,pher R. McDowell

16296G6 1
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3301-20--01 Empioytnent of individuals
with certain critninal convic-
tions

(A) Definitions -'Fhe following terms are defined
as they are used in this rule:

(1) "Applicant" means one of the following:

(a) One who is mtder final consideration for ap-
pointmenf or employmcnt in a position with a district
as a person responsible for the care, custody, or
coatrol of a chlld. An "applicant" does not include a
person already employed by a district in a position of
care, custody, or control of a child w}to is under
cotisideration for a different position with the same
district; or

(b) A person applying for an initial educator li-
u:nse issued under section 3319.22 or 3319.301 of the
Revised Code or a license to teach in a cltartered
nonpublic school.

(2) "Teacher" means a person holding any edu-
cator license issued under section 3319.22 or 3319.301
of the Revised ('ode or a iicense to teach in a
chartered nonpublic school.

(3) "Criminal records check" has the same ntean-
ing as in section 109.572 of the RevisedCode-

(4) "District" means a sehcxA district as described
in section 3311.01 of the Revised Code, educational
service centers, community schools, county MR/DD's,
chartered non-public schools mtd presehool programs.

(5) "State board" means the Ohio statc board of
education as defined in section 3301.01 of the Re-
vised Code.

(6) "Superintondent" means tlre superintendent of
public instruction and his/her designee as de£ned in
section 3301.13 of the f2evised Codc.

(7) "Department" ntcans the Ohio department of
education as defined in section 3301.13 of the Re-
vised Cqde.

(8) "License" nrcans the same as the terni license
as deGned in division (A) of section 331931 of the
Revised Code.

(9) An offense of violence mcans a violation of
sections 2903.01 (aggravated murder), 2903.02 (mnr-
der), 2903.03 (voluntary manslaughter), 2903.04 (in-
volmttary manslaughter), 2903.041 (reckless homi-
cide), 2903_ 11 (felonious a.ssault), 2903.12 (aggravaled
assault), 2903.15 (permitting child abuse), 2905,01
(kklnappnig), 2905.02 (abduction), 2905.05 (crintinal
child enticement), 2905.11 (extortion), 2909-02 (ag-
grevated arson), 2911.01 (aggravated robbery),
2911.02 (robbery), 2911.11 (aggravated burglary),
2917.01 (inciting to violence), 2917.02 (aggravated
riut), 2917.03 (riot), 2917.31 (inducing panic), 2921.03
(iotintidation), 2921.04 (intimidation of at(orney, vic-
tim or witness in criminal ease), 292134 (cscapc),
2923-161 (improper discharge firearm at or into habi-

tatiou; school-related olfetues), 2923.122 (illegal con-
veyance or possession of deadly weapon or dangerous
ordnance or ill®gat possecsion of an object indistin-
guishable from afirearm in school sat'ety zone),
2923.123 (illegal conveyance of deadly weapon or
dangerous ordnance into courthouse, illegal posses-
sion or control ht a courthouse), 2923.161 (improper-
ly discharging firearm at or into a habitation; school
rclated offenses), 2923.21 (improperly turnishing fire-
arms to niinor), 2923.17 (unlawful possession of dan-
gerous ordnance; illegalty ntanufaeturing or process-
ing explosives) of the Revised Code; divisions (13)(1),
(2), (3), or (4) of seetions 2919.22 (endangering chil-
dren), 2909.22 (soliciting or providing support for act
of terrorism), 2909.23 (making terroristic thrurt),
2909.24 (terrotism), 2917.33 (unlawful possession or
use of a hoax weapon of ntass destruction), 2927.24
(contanvnating substanoe f'or human consuntption or
use; contamina(ion with hazardous chemical, biologi-
cal, or radioactive substance; spreading false report),
3716.11 (placing harmful objccts in food}confcetion),
2921.05 (retaliation), 2919-12 (unlawful abortion),
2919.121 (perforn»ng or htducing utilawful ttbortion
upon minor), 2919.13 (abortion manslaugliter) of the
Revised Codc or section 2919.23 (interferenee of
custody) of the Revised Ccxtc that would have been a
violation of section 205.04 (child stealing) of the
Revised Code as it existed prior to July 1, 1996, had
the violation beetr committed prior to that date. A
conviction of attempt, complicity or conspiracy to any
of these offenses shall be deemed a violent offense
for purposes of this rule.

(10) A thcft offense means a violation of sections
2911.12 (burglary), 2913.44 (personating an officer),
2921.41 (theft in office), 2921.11 (perjury), or 2921.02
(bribery) of the Revised Code. A conviction of
attempt, amrplicity or conspiracy tn any of these
offenses shall be deemed a Itieft offcatic For parposes
of this rule.

(11) A drug abtue offense ureans a viotation of
sections 2925.02 (corrupting another w•ith drtrgs),
2925.03 (trafficking in drttgs), 2925.t1h (illegal manu-
f'acBure of drugs or ctdtivation of marihuana),
2925.041 (illegal assembly or possession of chemicals
for the manufacture of drugs), 2925.05 (funding of
drug ormarihnana trafficking), 2925.06 (itlegat ad-
ministration or distribution of anabo6c steroids),
2925,13 (permitting drug abuse), 2925.22 (dcception
to obtain a dangerous drug), 292523 (illegat posses-
sion of drug documents), 2925.24 (tanipering with
drugs), 2925.32 (trafficking in ltarnrftit intoxicants;
improperly dispeosing or di.stributing nitrous oxide),
2925.30 (illegal dispcnsing of drug samples), or
292537 (possession af asnnterfeit controlled sub-
stances) of the Revisecl Code. A conviction of at-
tentpt, complicity ar cottspiracy w mty of theso of-
fenses shatl bc deetncd a drug abuse offensc for
purposes of this rule.

(12) A sexually-oriented offense means a violation
of scctions 2907.02 (rape), 2907.03 (sexual battery),
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2907.04 (unlawful sexual conduct with a minor),
2907.05 (gross sexirat imposition), 2907.06 (sexual
imposition), 2907.07 (importuning), 2907.21 (compel-
ling prostitution), 2907.22 (promoting prostitution),
2907.23 (procuring), 2907.24 (soliciting; after positive
HIV test), 2907.241 (loitering to engage in solicitn-
tion; solicitation after positive FAV test) 290725
(prostitutton; after positive HIV test), 2907.31 (dis-
serninating matter harmfui to juvenites), 2907.311
(displaying harntful to juveniles), 2907.32 (pandering
obscenity), 2907.321 (pandering obscenity involving a
minor), 2907.322 (pandering sexually oriented nlatter
involving a minor), 2907.33 (deception to obtain mat-
ter harmfui to juveniles), 2907.34 (compelling accep-
tance of objectionable ntateri:tls). 2907.323 (illegat
use of a minor in nudity-oriented material or. per-
form:mcc) of the Revised Codc or a violation of
former section 2907.12 (felonious sexual penetration)
of the Revised Code. A conviction of attempt, conr
plicity or eonspiracy to any of these offenses shall bc
decmed a sexually-oriented offense for purposes of
this ru3c.

(B) No district shall employ, the state board shall
not issue an initiat license to, and the superiutendent
shall not enter into a conseut agreement with an
applicant if he previously has been couvieted of or
pled guilty to atty violation of any of the offenses
listed in division (B)(1) uf seetion 3319.39 of the
Revised Code and section 3319.31 of ttte Revised
Code or any municipat ordiaanee orlaw of this state,
another state, or the tJnited Stales that is substantial-
ly equivalent to the offe-nses listed in division (B)(1)
of section 3319.39 of the Revised Code and section
3319.31 of the Revised Code cxcept as provided in
paragraph (E) of this rule. If the state board intends
to deny a liccnse pursuant to this paragraph, tttc state
board shalt act in accordancc with sections 3319.31
anci 3319.311 of the Revised Code and Chapter 3301-
73 of the Administrative Cnde.

(C) If a teactrer has been convicted of or pled
guilty to any offense referred to in paragraptt (B) of
this rule, the state board shtdl act in aeeordancc with
sections 3319.31 aud 3319311 of the Revised Code
zutd Chapter 3301-73 of the Administrative Code. If
thc teacher sati.sfics all terms and conditions of a
consent agreement or state tward adopted resolution
pertaining to the applicant, hc/stte shall be dcenicd
rehabilitated with regard to the specific offense ad-
ctressed in the consent agrecment or resolution for
purposes of futurc employment or licensure. A dis-
trict maintains the disccetion whether to employ a
teacher who has been deemed rehabilitated uncter
this paragraph.

(D) Pursuant to division (li)(2) of section 3319-39
of the Revised Code, a district may entploy an appli-
cant conditionally until the crintinal records check
required by sections 3301.541 and 3319.39 of the
Revised Code is conipleted and the district receives
the results of the criminal records chuclc- If the
rasutts of the criminal records check indicate that,
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pursuant to this rute, the applicant does not qualify
for employment, the district shall release the appli-
cant from employment.

(E) A disttict may employ, the state board may
issue a license to and the superintendent may enter
into a consent agreement witlt an applicant that has It
been previously convicted of or pled guilty to an
offense if all of the following conditiqns are ntet:

(1) The conviction was not one of the following:

(a) An offense of violence as defined in paragraplt
(A)(9) of this rule;

(h) A theft offense as deflaed in paragraph
(A)(10) of tltis rule;

(e) A drug abuse offense as defined in paragraph
(A)(11) of this rule; or

(d) A sexually-oriented offense as defined in para-
graph (A)(12) of this rulc.

(2) If the conviction is not one listed in paragraph
(E)(1) of this rtde, the follovving reltabilitation criteria
shall apply:

(a) At the time of the offense, the victim of the
offense was not a person under eighteen years of age
or enrolleci as a student in a dislriet.

(b) If the offense was a felony, at least five years
have elapsed shtec the applicant was fully discharged
from imprisonmeru, probation, or parole or the appli-
cant has had the record of his conviction scaled or
expunged pursuant to section 2953-32 of the Revised
Code. Tf the offense was a misdemeanor, at least
fve years have elapsed since the date of conviction or
the applicant has had the record of his conviction
sealed or axpunged pursuant to section 295332 of the
Revised Code.

(c) Tfhc applicant has not been convicted of or
pled guilty to the commission of any of the offenses
listed in division (B)(1) of section 3319.39 of the
Revised Code and section 3319:31 of the Revised
Code two or more tin'tes in separate criminal actions.
Convictions or guDty pleas resulting from or connecc-
ed with the same act, nr resulting ftom offenses
committed at the same time, shall be counted ae one
cnnviction or guilty ple.a for putposos of this rule. A
sealed or expunged conviction shall not be counted.

(d) '1'tte applicant provides wriltcn con8rntation of
fris/her efforts at rehabilitation and the results of
those efforts. Written confirmation nray inclntle a
statement by a court, parole officer, probation officer
andJor coun.selor that the applicant has been rehabili-
tated.

(e) A reasonable person would conclude that the
applicanCs hiring or licensure will not jeopardize the
health, safety, or welfare of the persons servcd by the
district. Evidence that the applicaat's hiring or licen-
sure will not jeopardize the health, safety, or welfare
of tlte persons served by the district shall include, but
not be lintited to the following factors:
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'{11) The oxtant of the applicant's past erinlinal
activity;

(iii) 'Ihe age of the applicant when the crime was
comnlitted;

(iv) The amount of time that has elapsed sifu:e the
applicant's last criminal activity;

(v) The conduct and work activity of the applicant
before and after the criminal activity;

(vi), Whether the applicallt has completed the
terms.of his probation or deferred adjudieation;

(vii) Evidence of rehabilitatioa;

(viii) Whether the applicant fully disclosed the
crime to the state board, the department and the
district;

(ix) Whether employment or litxnsure will have a
negative impact on the local edtleation community;

(x) Whetller employment or licensure will have a
negative impact on the state-wide education commu-
nity; and

(xi) Any other factors the state board, district, or
superinteodent considers relevanL

(F) It is the applicant's duty to provide written
evidence upon application for employment or ficen-
sure that the conditions specified in paragraph (E) of
this rttle are met. If the applicant fails to provide
such evidence or if the district or the state board
determines that the proof offered by the appliamt is
inconclus-1ve or does not establish proof of rebabilita-
tion, the applicant shall not be llired and tllc license
shldl not be issued. Any doubt shall be resolved in
favor af protecting tile persons served by the ciistrict.
If licensnre is denied, tllc st:ue board, through the
superintendent, shall mriity the applicant and afford
Khe applicant ttlc opporttmity to request an adlniuis-
trative hearing under section 3319.31 anci Chapter
119, of thc Reviscd Codc,

(G) T7fis nile is applicable to records of convic-
tions that ltave beun sealed pttrsuant to seGion
2953.32 of the Revised Codc when the infortuation
contained in those sealed records bears a direct and
substantial relationship to the position for whieh the
applicant is being considered-

and department of educatioll's rale-making authority
tmder sections 3319.31, division (E) of section
3319.311 attd section 3319,39 uf the Revised Code.
F.ff. 09-23-2005

RC 119.032 rute rcview date(s): 9-23-10

Cross Refereuces
RC 3301.07, Pone[a of stsle Mlani
RC 33 19.211, F9ngecprints; ulvestignfion; proof of resideR<y; crimi-

nW recordc

RC 3319.31, ROfU5d, timlfffiIOII, sRSpCnfilqn, Or [eX<MOGOR Ot tICbSC

RC 3319.311,(nves^igatiolu; hcarings; nnlers

RC 331939, t}ibninal rer rrds ched<; disqualfficarlon from employ-
mcm

3301-24-11 Alternative principal license

(A) A one-vear aiternative principal license (re-
newablc two times), valid for serving as principal or
assistant principal, shall be issued at ttlc reytrest of
the superintendent of a city, educational serviee cen-
ter, local, exempted village, or 9oint vocational school
district to an individual who is decmed to be of good
moral character and who evidences Itlc following:

(1) Ilacheinr of arts/bachelor of science or masters
degree fran an accredited institution;

(2) Grade point avcrage of at least 3.O:

(3) Two or more years of teaehing experience or
fivc years of docuntented sutcessful work experienec
in education, nlanagement or adnlinistration.

(B) -I'he enlploying sdlool district shall provide a
mentoring program for aiternatively-licensed princi-
pals or assistant principals that irlcludes ihc following:

(1) tlssignntent of a mentor;

(2) Completinn of interstato school teaders licen-
sure consortiunl (ISLLC) self-assessment (availablc
online thtough ODE's website at
wwlv,odastateo h. us/teachirtg-profesvionlteacherhe-
cruitment retention/alt eond/);

(3) Development of a personal Ie,arning plan ap-
proved by the lnentor and supetintendent; -and

(4) Assistance in acyuiria critiaai k l dg now c ge 9n
(1^1) A couviction of or a plea of guilty to an the following areas: facilitating a vision, sch<wl cul-

offense listed in division (I3)(1) of section 3319.39 of ture and instructional program, managing the school
the Revised Code and 3319.31 of the Revised Code organi zAion, eollaboratioll and colnmunity cngage-
3hall not prevent at1 applicant's hiring if the appttcant mcnt, ethics and integrity, and undcrst:mding pubhcs,
has been granted an unconditional patdon for the (C) For non-educators is.sued an alternative princi-
offeose pursuant to Chapter 2967. of the Revised pal license, the employing school district shall devel-
Code or the conviction or guilty plea has becn set op and inlplcment a planned program for obtaining
asicle pursuant to law- For purprue, of this rule-, elassroom teaehing expcrience (one hundred eighty
"unconditional pardon" 1ncludds a conditional pardon elock Ifours with a tuinimunl of ninety houts in bot6
with respect to which all conditions have been per- year one and year two), Such a program nlust
fornled or havc

transpired, require the alternatively-license,d principal or assistant

(1) ?7fe nature and seriousness of the crime; (1) This rule is promulgated under the state board

:111upled Septemtrcr 2005
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3301-20-03 Emplovment of non-licensed individuals with certain criminal
convictions.

The pumose of this rule is to provide for the safety and well-being of students and
nursua»t to sections 3319 . 39 and 3319 391 of the Revised Code, set rehabilitation
standards for those individuals with certain critninal convictions seeking emplo rr^
with a district for a position that does not require a license and those individuals currently
employed b,y a district in a position that does not reauire a license but who are subject to
the requirements of a criminal records clieck pursuant to section 3319 391 of the Revised
Code. (The provisions of this rule do not apply to school bus or school van drivers.)

The rule establishes offenses for which emplovment and a determination of rehabilitation
of a non-licensed individual for a position within a school are expressly forbidden and
sets forth conditions under which a determination of rehabilitatioti is possible.

(A) Definitions:

(1) "Applicant" means one who is under final consideration for appointment or
employtnent in a nosition with a district that does not rcquire an educator
license.

(2) "Criminal records check" has the same meanine as in section 109.572 of the
Revised Code.

For the purposes of this rule "date of criminal reeords check" shall moan the
date of receipt of the results of a baekground check requested by a district,
which shall be time-stamped by the district on the date of receipt by the

district.

(3) "District" means a school district as described in section 3311 , 01 of the Revised
Code , a municipal school district as described in section 3311.71 of the
Revised Code , an educational service center , a community school, a county
MR/DD a chartered non-public sehool or a preschool program.

(4) "Fmp[ovee" means a current employee of a school district who is not reauired
to be licensed or certificated but who is subiect to the requirements of a
backk*round check pursuant to section 3319.391 of the Revised Code.

(5) "Offense" for the puirooses of this rule means an offense in division (B)(1) of

section 3319.39 and of the Reviscd Code and includes any munieipal
ordinance , law of this state another state or the United States that is
substantially euuivalent to one of the offenses referred^to in division (B)(1) of
section 3319.39 of the Revised Code.

(6) "Non-rehabilitative offense" means a criminal offense that would prohibit a
district from hiringor continuing employment of such an individual, and are
the following :
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(a) Sexually-oriented offenses: sections 2907.02 ra el 2907 .03 (sexual
battervl 2907 .04 (unlawful sexual conduct with a minor). 2907.05
(gross sexual imposition) 2907.06 (sexual im or s^'t n); 2907.07
(imnortiming) 2907 , 21 (compellingprostitution), 2907. 22 (promoting
prostitution) 2907 . 23 (procuring) 2907.25 (prostitution; after positive

HIV test) , 2907. 31 (disseminating matter harmful to juveniles _ 2) 907.32
(panderinu obscenity) 2907 321 (pandering obscenity involving a
minor) , 2907 322 (nanderingsexuallv or-iented matter involving a
minor) , or 2907 323 (illegal use of a minor in nudity-oriented material
or performance) of the Revised Code or a violation of fonner section
2907 . 12 (felonious sexual penetration)of the Revised Code.

(b) Child-related violent oftenses• sections 2905.01 (kidnappine). 2905.02
(abduction) 2905 . 05 (criminal child euticement), 2919.23 (interference
of custody) of the Revised Code that would have been a violation of
section 2905 . 04 (child stealing) of the Revised Code as it existed prior
to Julv 1 , 1996 had the violation been cominitted prior to that date,
divisions (13)(1), (2). (3 or (4) of section 2919 . 22 (eudangering
children) of the Revised Code.

(c) Violent offenses: sections 2903.01 (aggravated murder). 2903.02
murder) 2903. 03 (voluntary rnanslau Ig iter)2903.04 (involuntarv

manslauehterl of the ltevised Code.

(d) "Other violence-related offenses ° which mean a violation of the
following sections that occurred either within twenty yeaTs.12rior to the
date of the current application for apositlon with the district or, for a

rrent emplovee of a district, within twenty years prior to the date of
the current criminal records check: 2903 1 l(felonious assault), 2903.12
(aggravated assault)2911 .01 (agpravated robbery). 2911.02 (robbe
2911 . 11 (aggravated burglarvl or 2923.161 (improper discharge
firearm at or into habitation: school-related offenses) of the Revised
Code: 3716 . 11 (placing harmful objects in food/eonfection _ 219_12.
(unlawful abortion) of the Revised Code.

(e) "Drug offenses " which mean a violation of the followine sections that
occurred either within ten years prior to the date of the current
applieation for a position with the district or, for a current emaLQ^
a district within ten years prior to the date of the current criminal
records check: sections 2925 02 (corrupting another with drues)

2925 . 03 (traffieking in drugs) 2925 .04 (illegal mamifacture of drugs or
cultivation of marihuana), 2925 . 05 (funding of drug or tnarihuana

trafficking) 2925 .06 (illegal administration or distribution of anabolic
steroids) of the Revised Code.
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heft offense " which means a violation of section 2911.12 (burglarY) of
the Revised Code that occurred either witliin ten years prior to the date
of the current apnlication for a position with the district or, for a current
employee of a district, within ten years prior to the date of the current
criminal records check.

(g) "Other offenses ," which mean a violation of the following sections t.hat
occurred either within five e^prior to the date of the current
application for a position with the district or for a current employee of
a district , within five years prior to the date of the current criminal
records check: 2903 . 13 (asszult), 2903 . 16 (failing to provide for a
functionally impaired e^ rson), 2903.21 (aggravated menacing), 2903.34
(12atient use or neglect)2907 .08 (voveurism), 2907.09 (pubiic

indeceneyl division (A) of section 2919.22 (endangering children),

2919 . 24 (contributing to unruliness or delincuency of a childl, 2919 . 25
domesti& violenec) 2923. 12 (carrying concealed weapons), 2923 13

under disabi 2925 ioll of_a
controlled substance that is not a minor drug possession offense) of tlie
Revised Code.

(B) No district shall employ an a,pplicant upon learning that he/she has nled euiltv t.o
been found euilty bv a jurv or court of or convicted of anv ^of a:
non-rehabilitative offense as listed in paragraph (A)(6 ) of this rule. ln addition, the
district shall release an emplovee from emplovment upon learning that he/she has

y to been found ggilty by a jury or court of or convicted of any violationled ui t,
of a non rehabilitative offense as listed in paragraph (A)(6) of this rule. Likewise,_4
district shall release from employment Zn individual if the results of a crimin4l
records check indicate that, pursuant to this rule, the applicant does not qualifv for

employment.

(C) Pursuant to division (B)(2) of section 3319 . 39 of the Revised Code, a district may,
einnlov an applicant conditionally until the criminal records check required by
section 3319 .39 of the Revised Code is completed and the district receives the
results of the criminal records check. If the results of the criminat records checFc
indicate that pursuant to this rule the applicant does not qualify for employment
the district shall release the applicant from employment.

(D) A district maintains the discretion whether to employ or retain in emnlovment an
individual who has been deemed rehabilitated 12rrsu3nt to this rule. A district may
ennloyan ap^licant or continue to employ an indlvidual that has previously nle..
guilty to been found guilty by a iury or court of or convicted of an offcnsc listed in

division (1(l) of section 3319 .39 of the Revised Code, if all of the following

conditions for rehabilitation are met:

(1) The offense is not a non-rehlbilitative offense as listed in paragraph (A)(6Ld
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this rule:

(2) At the time of the offense, the victim of the offense was not a person under
eighteen years of age or enrolled as a student in a district.

(3) The applicant or employee provides written confirmation of his/her efforts at
rehabilitation and the results of those efforts. Written confirmation may
include a statement by a eourt, parole officer, probation officer and/or
counselor, or another source as approved by the district that the applicant or
emplovee has been rehabilitated.

(4) A reasonable person would conclude that the applicant's hiring or the retention
of the employee would not jeopardize the health, safety, or welfare of the
persons served by the district, based upon information pertinent to the
following factors:

(a) The nature and seriousness of the crime:

(b) 'I'he extent of the applicant or employce's past criminal activity,

(OThe age of the applicant or employee when the crime was committed:

(d) The amount of timc elapsed since the applicant or employee's last
criminal activitv:

(e) The conduct and work activit y of the applicant or employee before and
after the criminal actiyitv:

(1) Whether the applicant or employee has completed the terms of his
probation or deferred adjudieation•

(e) Evidence of rehabilitation;

(h) Whether the applicant fully disclosed the crime to the district:

(i) Whether emplovmetrt could have a ne ag tive impact on the local education
communitv:

(j) Whether employment could have a negative impact on the state-wide
education communitv:

(k) Any otlier factor the district considers relevant.

(E) It is the applicant or emrloyee's duty to provide written evidence that the conditions
specified in paragraph (D) of this rule are met. If the applicant or empiovee fails to
provide such evidence or if the district determines that the proof offered by the
applicant or employee is inconclusive or does not establish proof of rehabilitation.
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the applicant shall not be liired or the employee shall be released from em lo ty nent
Any doubt shall be resolved in favor of protecting the12ersons served bXthe district.

(F) Except as otherwise sliecified in this rule, the provisions of this rule are also
applicable to records of convictions that have been sealed pursuant to section
2953 . 32 of the Revised Code or any municipal ordinance or law of this state
another state, or the United States that is substantially equivalent to section 295332
of the Revised Code.

(G) A plea of guiltv to a findina of ug ilt by a jmv or court of, or a conviction of an.
offense listed in division (B)(1) of section 3319.39 of the Revised Code shall not
prevent an applicant's hiring or the retention of an emplovee if the applicant or
emplovee has been granted an unconditional pardon for the offense pursuant to
Chapter 2967 . of the Revised Code or the eonviction or guilty plea has been set
aside pursuant to law For purooses of this iule "unconditional 12ardon" include5_4
conditional pardon with respect to which all conditions have been nerformed or
havc transpired.

(11) As a condition of initial or continued emglovment pursuant to the requirements of
this rule the district may request the applicant or ernplovee to be evaluated b,La
licensed provider (e.g . plrysician psvchologist psychiatrist, independent social
worker, professional counselor, chemieal dependency counselor. etc.) and/or
successfully complete a recognized and/or certifred treatment propram relevant tq
the nature of the conviction. (Unless otherwise spgcified in an einployee contract,
labor agreement, or other siinilar agreement, the employee or applicant shall beqLr
all direct and associated costs of the evaluation and treatment prograni.) Pailure oia

request oursuar^tthe nart of an applicant or employee to comRly with the district's
to this paragrauh mav be considered by the district as a factor against initial or
continued employment.

(1) Prior to rendering a decision on emplovment the district shall provide an opportuni>X
for a meeting to an employee, if requested by the individual so that he/she ^.ngy,
provide evidence of rehabilitation pursuant to the requirements of this nile.

(7) The decision of the district on wllether to employ or continue to emplov an individua
pursuant to the requirernents of this rule can not be appealed to the Ohio
depattmert of education or state board of education.

^{ This rule is pronlulgated under the state board and department of education's
mle-making authoritv rmder division (F,) of section 3319.39 of the Revised Code.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF THE CITY OF CINCINNATI

rdlULTIPI@ YEAR Al)tdINISTRAtiVE COtrrRACT

37100, A to E-9econdary

This Agraement, entered into this 14th day of July, 2008 by andbetween

and the Board of Education of the CitySchoo District ofihe City of Cincinnatt,phio foran administratNe
position.

Wifnesseth:
The term of this agreement shall be for T'WO school years, or for such pori[on thereof as may remein after
the beginning date of service, subject to the foqowing c:onditions, to-Wit:

^. The posidon, term of seivice and salary shall be spedfied in the annual noffce to be given by the
Board pursuant to Sedion 3319.12 of the Revised Code of Ohlo, which notice (s made part of this

Contract
ir Assignments may be changed according to law.
3. All Policies of the Board of Education shall be observed and duties as detFned by the Supedntendent

shall be discharged efficiently and fafthfulty.
4. LDss of pay on eccount of absence from duty shall be govemed by the Pollcies of the Board.
S. This agreemenTts subJect^fa'a saG^aL^^ym€dicgf's^amihatfaTi: "- -' "-" •-"

6. All provisions of the laws of Ohio rela6ve to the SCHOOL EMPLOYEES Retirement System shall be

observed.
7. Commencement of the terin of this agreement subject to confirmatien of appropdate state ceriificafion.
8. In the event of a reduction tn Administrative Supervisory Positions, the employee hereby agrees to

abide byAdministrafive Procedures Na.4115.614215.6, Redueilori In Forc.e Procedure for leadership
personnel.

Treasurer

Employee Copy - retain for your Recerds
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